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Kevin J. Cole (SBN 321555) 
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Attorneys for Plaintiff 
Zachary Stein 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

ZACHARY STEIN, an individual, 
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v. 

BLACK DIAMOND SUPPLEMENTS, LLC, an 
Arizona limited liability company; and DOES 1 
through 50, inclusive, 

  Defendants. 

CASE NO.: 
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Plaintiff ZACHARY STEIN, by and through his attorneys, alleges against Defendants BLACK 

DIAMOND SUPPLEMENTS, LLC and DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, as follows: 

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY OF CLAIMS 

1. This Complaint is a representative action brought by Zachary Stein (“Plaintiff”) in the 

public interest of the citizens of the State of California (“the People”).  Plaintiff seeks to remedy 

Defendants’ failure to inform the People of exposure to Androstenedione, a known carcinogen. 

Defendants expose consumers to Androstenedione by manufacturing, importing, selling, and/or 

distributing a muscle building compound called “Monster Plexx by Innovative Labs” (the “Subject 

Product”).  Defendants know and intend that customers will ingest Androstenedione when they consume 

the Subject Product. 

2. Under California’s Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986, California 

Health and Safety Code, section 25249.6 et seq. (“Proposition 65”), “[n]o person in the course of doing 

business shall knowingly and intentionally expose any individual to a chemical known to the state to cause 

cancer or reproductive toxicity without first giving clear and reasonable warning to such individual . . .”  

(Health & Safety Code, § 25249.6.) 

3. California identified and listed Androstenedione as a cancer-causing toxic substance as 

early as May 3, 2011. 

4. Defendants failed to sufficiently warn consumers and individuals in California about 

potential exposure to Androstenedione in connection with Defendants’ manufacture, import, sale, or 

distribution of the Subject Product.  This is a violation of Proposition 65. 

5. Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief compelling Defendants to sufficiently warn consumers in 

California before exposing them to Androstenedione in the Subject Product.  (Health & Safety Code, § 

25249.7(a).)  Plaintiff also seeks civil penalties against Defendants for their violations of Proposition 65 

along with attorneys’ fees and costs.  (Health & Safety Code, § 25249.7(b).) 

THE PARTIES 

6. Plaintiff Zachary Stein (“Plaintiff”) is an individual residing in California. 

7. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant Black Diamond 

Supplements, LLC (“Black Diamond”) is an Arizona limited liability company with its principal place of 
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business in Scottsdale, Arizona.  Upon further information and belief, Black Diamond is registered to do 

business in California, and does business in the County of Los Angeles, within the meaning of Health and 

Safety Code, section 25249.11.  Black Diamond manufactures, imports, sells, or distributes the Subject 

Product in California and Los Angeles County.  Upon still further information and belief, Black Diamond 

employs ten or more persons. 

8. Plaintiff does not know the true names and/or capacities, whether individual, partners, or 

corporate, of the defendants sued herein as DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, and for that reason sues said 

defendants under fictitious names. 

9. Plaintiff will seek leave to amend this Complaint when the true names and capacities of 

these defendants have been ascertained.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that these 

defendants are responsible in whole or in part for Plaintiff’s damages. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

10. California Constitution Article VI, Section 10 grants the Superior Court original 

jurisdiction in all cases except those given by statute to other trial courts.  The Health and Safety Code 

statute upon which this action is based does not give jurisdiction to any other court.  Therefore, this Court 

has jurisdiction. 

11. Venue is proper in the Los Angeles County Superior Court pursuant to Code of Civil 

Procedure, sections 394, 395, and 395.5.  Wrongful conduct occurred and continues to occur in this 

County.  Defendants conducted and continue to conduct business in this County as it relates to the 

Products. 

12. Defendants have sufficient minimum contacts in the State of California or otherwise 

purposefully avail themselves of the California market.  Exercising jurisdiction over Defendants would 

be consistent with traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

Anabolic Steroid Regulation 

13. Anabolic Steroids are compounds derived from Testosterone intended for muscle building.  

Anabolic Steroids gained popularity in the 1980’s.  However, due to risks associated with them, anabolic 

steroids were added to Schedule III of the Controlled Substances Act (the “CSA”) by the Anabolic 
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Steroids Control Act in 1990.  See Pub. L. No. 101-647, 104 Stat. 4851, 4851-54 (1990) (codified as 

amended at 21 U.S.C. §§ 333, 333a, 801 nt., 802, 802 nt., 829 nt., 844 and 42 U.S.C. § 290aa-6 (2000)). 

14. The same year, anabolic steroids were placed in the State of California’s list of chemicals 

known to cause reproductive toxicity on April 1, 1990. 

Androstenedione 

15. Based on the illegality of steroids, manufacturers began attempting an end around existing 

law by developing precursors to Testosterone.  Arguably, the most popular such precursor was 

Androstenedione.  Androstenedione is similar in structure to Testosterone, and its effect on the human 

body is similarly dangerous.  These similarities led to litigation regarding the legality of Androstenedione 

before it was known to be harmful. 

16. For example, in 2001, based on the statutory framework at the time, the Court of Appeal 

in Consumer Cause, Inc. v. Weider Nutrition International, 92 Cal.App.4th 363 (2001) determined that 

Androstenedione was not an anabolic steroid as it was defined at the time because it was a precursor to 

Testosterone. 

17. Thereafter, in 2011, Androstenedione was added to the Proposition 65 list pursuant to 

Health and Safety Code section 25249.8 because it was demonstrated to cause cancer.  Specifically, 

Androstenedione was listed because of its use for “[p]erformance enhancement” and as an “androgenic 

anabolic steroid precursor” thereby abrogating Weider.  See Office of Environmental Health Hazard 

Assessment (“OEHHA”), Proposition 65 Androstenedione Listing (Exhibit A).  Notably, OEHHA’s 

listing of Androstenedione lists “4-Androstene-3,17-dione” and “Andro” as synonyms for 

Androstenedione.  Defendants use the same nomenclature for the Subject Products. 

18. Three years after the State of California listed Androstenedione on the Proposition 65 list, 

Congress enacted the Designer Anabolic Steroid Control Act (“DASCA”), which added additional 

substances to the list of anabolic steroids and included an “analogue provision” for substances that were 

not specifically listed. 

19. This provision expanded the definition of an anabolic steroid by providing that drugs and 

hormonal substances not listed in 21 U.S.C. §§ 802(41)(i)–(lxxv) may be considered to be an anabolic 

steroid if “(I) the drug or substance has been created or manufactured with the intent of producing a drug 
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or other substance that either— (aa)promotes muscle growth; or (bb) otherwise causes a pharmacological 

effect similar to that of testosterone; or (II) the drug or substance has been, or is intended to be, marketed 

or otherwise promoted in any manner suggesting that consuming it will promote muscle growth or any 

other pharmacological effect similar to that of testosterone.”  21 U.S.C. § 802(41)(C)(i). 

20. Since DASCA’s passage, the federal government has successfully prosecuted the sale of 

Androstenedione and its analogues, including 4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one (“Defendants’ 

Androstenedione”), which the government has found to fit the definition of Androstenedione.  See Exhibit 

B. 

21. Numerous regulatory bodies have made the same conclusion, including those governing 

the use of performance enhancing drugs in sports.1 

Defendants’ Sale of Androstenedione 

22. The Subject Product is designed and marketed for “massive gains in size and strength” and 

as a “powerful blend of five anabolic compounds.”  4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one is considered a synonym 

for Androstenedione. 

23. Defendants sell 4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one in various products available on its website, 

including the Subject Product (Monster Plexx by Innovation Labs2).  The Subject Product contains 

Defendants’ Androstenedione (4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one). 

24. Defendants’ sale of the Subject Product violates Proposition 65 because the Subject 

Product contains 4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one,3 which, again, converts to Androstenedione when ingested 

in the human body. 

25. Since Androstenedione (and its synonyms “4-Androstenedione,” “17-Ketotestosterone,” 

“4-Androstene-3,17-dione,” and “Andro”) was added to the list of prohibited chemicals as a steroid 

precursor in 2011, the sale of products that convert to Androstenedione (like the Subject Product) have all 

required warning labels in the State of California. 

Defendants’ Failure to Warn 

 
1 https://www.wada-ama.org/sites/default/files/wada_2019_english_prohibited_list.pdf 
2 https://blackdiamondsupplements.com/shop/monster-plexx/ 
3 Also marketed as “4-Androsterone” or “4-DHEA.” 
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26. Proposition 65 requires that a clear and reasonable warning be provided with any product 

that exposes consumers to Androstenedione through its ordinary use.  See Health & Safety Code, § 

25249.6. 

27. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based on such information and belief alleges, that 

since at least December 10, 2017, Defendants have manufactured, assembled, and/or sold the Subject 

Product in California.  Despite being a listed substance, Defendants’ Subject Product bears no warning 

label. 

28. Defendants know that the Subject Product results in exposures to Androstenedione, as the 

product pages themselves detail the presence of the steroid precursor Androstenedione. 

29. Defendants’ sales of the Subject Product to California consumers are intentional because 

they are the result of Defendants’ deliberate acts of marketing and promoting the Subject Product in the 

California marketplace.  As a result of the sales of the Subject Product, exposures to Androstenedione 

have been occurring without proper warnings. 

30. Defendants are in violation of Proposition 65 by failing to provide clear and reasonable 

warnings that the use of the Subject Product results in exposures to a chemical known to the State of 

California to cause cancer. 

31. Defendants have exposed consumers to Androstenedione in violation of Proposition 65 for 

two and a half years.  These violations will continue to occur as long as the Subject Product is sold to and 

used by consumers. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

First Cause of Action 

(Violation of Proposition 65 - Against all Defendants) 

32. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained above. 

33. Proposition 65 mandates that citizens be informed about exposures to chemicals that cause 

cancer, birth defects, and other reproductive harm. 

34. Defendants manufactured, imported, sold, and/or distributed the Subject Product 

containing Androstenedione in violation of Health and Safety Code, section 25249.6 et seq.  Plaintiff is 
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informed and believes such violations have continued after receipt of the Notice (defined infra) and will 

continue to occur into the future. 

35. In manufacturing, importing, selling, and/or distributing the Subject Product, Defendants 

failed to provide a clear and reasonable warning to consumers and individuals in California who may be 

exposed to Androstenedione through the reasonably foreseeable use of the Subject Product. 

36. The Subject Product exposes individuals to Androstenedione through direct ingestion.  

This exposure is a natural and foreseeable consequence of Defendants placing the Subject Product into 

the California stream of commerce.  As such, Defendants intend that consumers will ingest the Subject 

Product, exposing them to Androstenedione. 

37. Defendants knew or should have known that the Subject Product contained 

Androstenedione and exposed individuals to Androstenedione in the ways provided above.  The Notice 

(defined infra) informed Defendants of the presence of Androstenedione in the Subject Product.  

Likewise, recent investigations and prosecutions by the federal government concerning Androstenedione 

and related chemicals in consumer products provided constructive notice to Defendants. 

38. Defendants’ actions in this regard were deliberate and not accidental. 

39. More than sixty days prior to naming Black Diamond in this lawsuit, Plaintiff issued a 60-

Day Notice of Violation (the “Notice”) as required by and in compliance with Proposition 65.  Plaintiff 

provided the Notice to the various required public enforcement agencies along with a certificate of merit.  

The Notice alleged that Black Diamond violated Proposition 65 by failing to sufficiently warn consumers 

in California of the health hazards associated with exposures to Androstenedione contained in the Subject 

Product. 

40. The appropriate public enforcement agencies provided with the Notice failed to commence 

and diligently prosecute a cause of action against Defendants. 

41. Individuals exposed to Androstenedione contained in the Subject Product through direct 

ingestion resulting from the reasonably foreseeable use of the Subject Product have suffered and continue 

to suffer irreparable harm.  There is no other plain, speedy, or adequate remedy at law. 
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42. Defendants are liable for a maximum civil penalty of $2,500 per day for each violation of 

Proposition 65 pursuant to Health and Safety Code, section 252497(b).  Injunctive relief is also appropriate 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code, section 25249.7(a). 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendants as follows: 

1. Civil penalties in the amount of $2,500 per day for each violation; 

2. A preliminary and permanent injunction against Defendants from manufacturing, 

importing, selling, and/or distributing the Subject Product in California without providing a clear and 

reasonable warning as required by Proposition 65 and related Regulations; 

3. Reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of suit; and; 

4. Such other and further relief as may be just and proper. 

 

DATED:  June 9, 2020 KJC LAW GROUP, A.P.C. 
By: /s/ Kevin J. Cole  
 Kevin J. Cole, Esq. 
 Attorneys for Plaintiff Zachary Stein 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
  



CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH HAZARD ASSESSMENT 

SAFE DRINKING WATER AND TOXIC ENFORCEMENT ACT OF 1986 
(PROPOSITION 65) 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO LIST: ANDROSTENEDIONE, DIBROMOACETONITRILE, 
HEXACHLOROBUTADIENE, AND MALONALDEHYDE, SODIUM SALT 

March 4, 2011  

The California Environmental Protection Agency’s Office of Environmental Health 
Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) intends to list the chemicals androstenedione, 
dibromoacetonitrile, hexachlorobutadiene, and malonaldehyde, sodium salt as known to 
the State to cause cancer under the Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 
1986.1  This action is being proposed under the authoritative bodies listing mechanism.2

Chemical 
(CAS No.) 

 

Endpoint Reference Occurrence 

Androstenedione 
(63-05-8) 

Cancer NTP 
(2010a) 

Precursor to male and female sex hormones 
produced by the human body; dietary 
supplement currently designated as a 
controlled substance under federal law a 

Dibromoacetonitrile 
(3252-43-5) 

Cancer NTP 
(2010b) 

By-product of drinking water disinfection by 
ozone or chlorination disinfection processes 
in the presence of natural organic matter 
and bromine 

Hexachlorobutadiene 
(87-68-3) 

Cancer U.S. EPA 
(2003) 

Waste by-product from hydrocarbon 
chlorination processes; chemical 
intermediate in the manufacture of rubber, 
chlorofluorocarbons, lubricants, and 
transformer and hydraulic fluids 

Malonaldehyde, 
sodium salt 
(24382-04-5) 

Cancer NTP (1988) The sodium salt of malonaldehyde is unlikely 
to occur in nature, and has no industrial use.  
Malonaldehyde is a natural metabolic by-
product of prostaglandin biosynthesis and an 
end product of polyunsaturated lipid 
peroxidation. 

a Title 21 U.S. Code, Sec. 802(41)(A). 

OEHHA requested information relevant to the possible listing of androstenedione, 
dibromoacetonitrile, hexachlorobutadiene, and malonaldehyde, sodium salt in a notice 

                                                 
1 Commonly known as Proposition 65, the Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 is 
codified in Health and Safety Code section 25249.5 et seq. 
2 See Health and Safety Code section 25249.8(b) and Title 27, Cal. Code of Regs., section 25306.  
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published in the California Regulatory Notice Register on November 26, 2010 (Register 
2010, Vol. No. 48-Z).  OEHHA received no public comments. 

Background on listing via the authoritative bodies mechanism:  A chemical must 
be listed under the Proposition 65 regulations when two conditions are met: 

1) An authoritative body formally identifies the chemical as causing cancer (Section 
25306(d)3

2) The evidence considered by the authoritative body meets the sufficiency criteria 
contained in the regulations (Section 25306(e)). 

). 

However, the chemical is not listed if scientifically valid data which were not considered 
by the authoritative body clearly establish that the sufficiency of evidence criteria were 
not met (Section 25306(f)). 

The National Toxicology Program (NTP) and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
(U.S. EPA) are two of several institutions designated as authoritative for the 
identification of chemicals as causing cancer (Section 25306(m)). 

OEHHA is the lead agency for Proposition 65 implementation.  After an authoritative 
body has made a determination about a chemical, OEHHA evaluates whether listing 
under Proposition 65 is required using the criteria contained in the regulations. 

OEHHA’s determination: Androstenedione, dibromoacetonitrile, hexachlorobutadiene, 
and malonaldehyde, sodium salt each meet the criteria for listing as known to the State 
to cause cancer under Proposition 65, based on findings of the NTP and the U.S. EPA. 

Formal identification and sufficiency of evidence for androstenedione:  In 2010, 
the NTP published a report on androstenedione, entitled Toxicology and 
Carcinogenesis Studies of Androstenedione (CAS No. 63-05-8) in F344/N Rats and 
B6C3F1 Mice (Gavage Studies), that concludes that the chemical causes cancer (NTP, 
2010a).  This report satisfies the formal identification and sufficiency of evidence criteria 
in the Proposition 65 regulations. 

OEHHA is relying on the NTP’s discussion of data and conclusions in the report that 
androstenedione causes cancer.  The NTP (2010a) report concludes: 

“Under the conditions of these 2-year gavage studies, there was equivocal 
evidence of carcinogenic activity of androstenedione in male F344/N rats 
based on increased incidences of alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma and 
alveolar/bronchiolar adenoma or carcinoma (combined).  There was 
equivocal evidence of carcinogenic activity of androstenedione in female 
F344/N rats based on increased incidences of mononuclear cell leukemia.  
There was clear evidence of carcinogenic activity of androstenedione in 
male B6C3F1 mice based on increased incidences of multiple 
hepatocellular adenoma and hepatocellular carcinoma and increased 
incidence of hepatoblastoma.  There was clear evidence of carcinogenic 

                                                 
3 All referenced sections are from Title 27 of the Cal. Code of Regulations. 
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activity of androstenedione in female B6C3F1 mice based on increased 
incidences of hepatocellular adenoma and hepatocellular carcinoma.  
Increased incidences of pancreatic islet adenoma in male and female 
mice were also considered chemical related.” (Emphasis in original) 

Thus, the NTP (2010a) has found that androstenedione causes increased incidences of 
malignant and combined malignant and benign liver tumors in male and female mice. 

Formal identification and sufficiency of evidence for dibromoacetonitrile:  In 2010, 
the NTP published a report on dibromoacetonitrile, entitled Toxicology and 
Carcinogenesis Studies of Dibromoacetonitrile (CAS No. 3252-43-5) in F344/N Rats 
and B6C3F1 Mice (Drinking Water Studies), that concludes that the chemical causes 
cancer (NTP, 2010b).  This report satisfies the formal identification and sufficiency of 
evidence criteria in the Proposition 65 regulations. 

OEHHA is relying on the NTP’s discussion of data and conclusions in the report that 
dibromoacetonitrile causes cancer.  The NTP (2010b) report concludes: 

“Under the conditions of these 2-year drinking water studies there was 
clear evidence of carcinogenic activity of dibromoacetonitrile in male rats 
based on increased incidences of squamous cell papillomas or 
carcinomas of the oral cavity; adenomas in the glandular stomach of male 
rats were also considered to be exposure-related.  There was some 
evidence of carcinogenic activity of dibromoacetonitrile in female rats 
based on an increased incidence of squamous cell papillomas of the oral 
cavity; increased incidences of basal cell or squamous cell neoplasms of 
the skin in female rats may have been related to dibromoacetonitrile 
exposure.  There was clear evidence of carcinogenic activity of 
dibromoacetonitrile in male mice based on increased incidences of 
squamous cell papillomas or carcinomas of the forestomach.  Increased 
incidences of neoplasms in the liver of male mice may have been related 
to dibromoacetonitrile exposure.  There was clear evidence of 
carcinogenic activity of dibromoacetonitrile in female mice based on 
increased incidences of squamous cell papilloma of the forestomach.” 
(Emphasis in original) 

Thus, the NTP (2010b) has found that dibromoacetonitrile causes increased incidences 
of combined malignant and benign tumors of the oral cavity in male rats and combined 
malignant and benign forestomach tumors in male mice. 

Formal identification and sufficiency of evidence for hexachlorobutadiene:  In 
2003, the U.S. EPA published a report on hexachlorobutadiene, entitled Health Effects 
Support Document for Hexachlorobutadiene, that concludes that the chemical causes 
cancer (U.S. EPA, 2003).  This report satisfies the formal identification and sufficiency 
of evidence criteria in the Proposition 65 regulations. 
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OEHHA is relying on the U.S. EPA’s discussion of data and conclusions in the report 
that hexachlorobutadiene causes cancer.  The U.S. EPA (2003) report concludes that 
hexachlorobutadiene is “likely to be carcinogenic to humans by the oral route of 
exposure.”  In its report, the U.S. EPA describes studies of rats treated with 
hexachlorobutadiene in their diet for two years showing increases in the incidence of 
malignant tumors (e.g., adenocarcinomas) of the renal tubule in male and female rats 
and incidences of combined malignant and benign tumors of the renal tubules in both 
male and female rats. 

Thus, the U.S. EPA (2003) has found that hexachlorobutadiene causes increased 
incidences of malignant and combined malignant and benign kidney tumors in male and 
female rats. 

Formal identification and sufficiency of evidence for malonaldehyde, sodium salt:  
In 1988, the NTP published a report on malonaldehyde, sodium salt, entitled Toxicology 
and Carcinogenesis Studies of Malonaldehyde, Sodium Salt (3-Hydroxy-2-propenal, 
Sodium Salt) (CAS No. 24382-04-5) in F344/N Rats and B6C3F1 Mice (Gavage 
Studies), that concludes that the chemical causes cancer (NTP, 1988).  This report 
satisfies the formal identification and sufficiency of evidence criteria in the Proposition 
65 regulations. 

OEHHA is relying on the NTP’s discussion of data and conclusions in the report that 
malonaldehyde, sodium salt causes cancer.  The NTP (1988) report concludes: 

“Under the conditions of these 2-year gavage studies, there was clear 
evidence of carcinogenic activity for male and female F344/N rats 
administered malonaldehyde, sodium salt, as shown by the increased 
incidences of follicular cell adenomas or carcinomas (combined) of the 
thyroid gland.  Pancreatic islet cell adenomas were also observed at an 
increased incidence in low dose male rats.  There was no evidence of 
carcinogenic activity for B6C3F1 mice administered 60 or 120 mg/kg 
malonaldehyde, sodium salt, in distilled water by gavage 5 days per week 
for 2 years.” (Emphasis in original) 

Thus, NTP (1988) has found that malonaldehyde, sodium salt causes increased 
incidences of combined malignant and benign tumors of the thyroid gland in male and 
female rats. 

Request for comments:  OEHHA is committed to public participation in its 
implementation of Proposition 65. OEHHA wants to ensure that its regulatory decisions 
are based on a thorough consideration of all relevant information.  OEHHA is 
requesting comments as to whether these chemicals meet the criteria set forth in the 
Proposition 65 regulations for authoritative bodies listings.  In order to be considered, 
OEHHA must receive comments by 5:00 p.m. on Monday, April 4, 2011. We 
encourage you to submit comments in electronic form, rather than in paper form.  
Comments transmitted by e-mail should be addressed to coshita@oehha.ca.gov.  

mailto:coshita@oehha.ca.gov�
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Comments submitted in paper form may be mailed, faxed, or delivered in person to the 
addresses below: 

Mailing Address: Ms. Cynthia Oshita 
Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 
P.O. Box 4010, MS-19B 
Sacramento, California 95812-4010 

Fax:    (916) 323-8803 

Street Address:   1001 I Street 
Sacramento, California 95814 

If you have any questions, please contact Ms. Oshita at coshita@oehha.ca.gov or at 
(916) 445-6900. 
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	Stein v. Black Diamond - Complaint.pdf
	KJC LAW GROUP, A.P.C.
	6700 Fallbrook Avenue, Suite 207
	West Hills, CA 91307
	Telephone: (818) 392-8995
	1. This Complaint is a representative action brought by Zachary Stein (“Plaintiff”) in the public interest of the citizens of the State of California (“the People”).  Plaintiff seeks to remedy Defendants’ failure to inform the People of exposure to An...
	2. Under California’s Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986, California Health and Safety Code, section 25249.6 et seq. (“Proposition 65”), “[n]o person in the course of doing business shall knowingly and intentionally expose any indiv...
	3. California identified and listed Androstenedione as a cancer-causing toxic substance as early as May 3, 2011.
	4. Defendants failed to sufficiently warn consumers and individuals in California about potential exposure to Androstenedione in connection with Defendants’ manufacture, import, sale, or distribution of the Subject Product.  This is a violation of Pro...
	5. Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief compelling Defendants to sufficiently warn consumers in California before exposing them to Androstenedione in the Subject Product.  (Health & Safety Code, § 25249.7(a).)  Plaintiff also seeks civil penalties agains...
	6. Plaintiff Zachary Stein (“Plaintiff”) is an individual residing in California.
	7. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant Black Diamond Supplements, LLC (“Black Diamond”) is an Arizona limited liability company with its principal place of business in Scottsdale, Arizona.  Upon further inform...
	8. Plaintiff does not know the true names and/or capacities, whether individual, partners, or corporate, of the defendants sued herein as DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, and for that reason sues said defendants under fictitious names.
	9. Plaintiff will seek leave to amend this Complaint when the true names and capacities of these defendants have been ascertained.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that these defendants are responsible in whole or in part for Pl...
	10. California Constitution Article VI, Section 10 grants the Superior Court original jurisdiction in all cases except those given by statute to other trial courts.  The Health and Safety Code statute upon which this action is based does not give juri...
	11. Venue is proper in the Los Angeles County Superior Court pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure, sections 394, 395, and 395.5.  Wrongful conduct occurred and continues to occur in this County.  Defendants conducted and continue to conduct business in...
	12. Defendants have sufficient minimum contacts in the State of California or otherwise purposefully avail themselves of the California market.  Exercising jurisdiction over Defendants would be consistent with traditional notions of fair play and subs...
	Anabolic Steroid Regulation
	13. Anabolic Steroids are compounds derived from Testosterone intended for muscle building.  Anabolic Steroids gained popularity in the 1980’s.  However, due to risks associated with them, anabolic steroids were added to Schedule III of the Controlled...
	14. The same year, anabolic steroids were placed in the State of California’s list of chemicals known to cause reproductive toxicity on April 1, 1990.
	Androstenedione
	15. Based on the illegality of steroids, manufacturers began attempting an end around existing law by developing precursors to Testosterone.  Arguably, the most popular such precursor was Androstenedione.  Androstenedione is similar in structure to Te...
	16. For example, in 2001, based on the statutory framework at the time, the Court of Appeal in Consumer Cause, Inc. v. Weider Nutrition International, 92 Cal.App.4th 363 (2001) determined that Androstenedione was not an anabolic steroid as it was defi...
	17. Thereafter, in 2011, Androstenedione was added to the Proposition 65 list pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25249.8 because it was demonstrated to cause cancer.  Specifically, Androstenedione was listed because of its use for “[p]erforman...
	18. Three years after the State of California listed Androstenedione on the Proposition 65 list, Congress enacted the Designer Anabolic Steroid Control Act (“DASCA”), which added additional substances to the list of anabolic steroids and included an “...
	19. This provision expanded the definition of an anabolic steroid by providing that drugs and hormonal substances not listed in 21 U.S.C. §§ 802(41)(i)–(lxxv) may be considered to be an anabolic steroid if “(I) the drug or substance has been created o...
	20. Since DASCA’s passage, the federal government has successfully prosecuted the sale of Androstenedione and its analogues, including 4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one (“Defendants’ Androstenedione”), which the government has found to fit the definition of A...
	21. Numerous regulatory bodies have made the same conclusion, including those governing the use of performance enhancing drugs in sports.0F
	Defendants’ Sale of Androstenedione
	22. The Subject Product is designed and marketed for “massive gains in size and strength” and as a “powerful blend of five anabolic compounds.”  4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one is considered a synonym for Androstenedione.
	23. Defendants sell 4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one in various products available on its website, including the Subject Product (Monster Plexx by Innovation Labs1F ).  The Subject Product contains Defendants’ Androstenedione (4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one).
	24. Defendants’ sale of the Subject Product violates Proposition 65 because the Subject Product contains 4-Androstene-3b-ol,17-one,2F  which, again, converts to Androstenedione when ingested in the human body.
	25. Since Androstenedione (and its synonyms “4-Androstenedione,” “17-Ketotestosterone,” “4-Androstene-3,17-dione,” and “Andro”) was added to the list of prohibited chemicals as a steroid precursor in 2011, the sale of products that convert to Androste...
	Defendants’ Failure to Warn
	26. Proposition 65 requires that a clear and reasonable warning be provided with any product that exposes consumers to Androstenedione through its ordinary use.  See Health & Safety Code, § 25249.6.
	27. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and based on such information and belief alleges, that since at least December 10, 2017, Defendants have manufactured, assembled, and/or sold the Subject Product in California.  Despite being a listed substance,...
	28. Defendants know that the Subject Product results in exposures to Androstenedione, as the product pages themselves detail the presence of the steroid precursor Androstenedione.
	29. Defendants’ sales of the Subject Product to California consumers are intentional because they are the result of Defendants’ deliberate acts of marketing and promoting the Subject Product in the California marketplace.  As a result of the sales of ...
	30. Defendants are in violation of Proposition 65 by failing to provide clear and reasonable warnings that the use of the Subject Product results in exposures to a chemical known to the State of California to cause cancer.
	31. Defendants have exposed consumers to Androstenedione in violation of Proposition 65 for two and a half years.  These violations will continue to occur as long as the Subject Product is sold to and used by consumers.
	CAUSES OF ACTION
	First Cause of Action
	(Violation of Proposition 65 - Against all Defendants)
	32. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every allegation contained above.
	33. Proposition 65 mandates that citizens be informed about exposures to chemicals that cause cancer, birth defects, and other reproductive harm.
	34. Defendants manufactured, imported, sold, and/or distributed the Subject Product containing Androstenedione in violation of Health and Safety Code, section 25249.6 et seq.  Plaintiff is informed and believes such violations have continued after rec...
	35. In manufacturing, importing, selling, and/or distributing the Subject Product, Defendants failed to provide a clear and reasonable warning to consumers and individuals in California who may be exposed to Androstenedione through the reasonably fore...
	36. The Subject Product exposes individuals to Androstenedione through direct ingestion.  This exposure is a natural and foreseeable consequence of Defendants placing the Subject Product into the California stream of commerce.  As such, Defendants int...
	37. Defendants knew or should have known that the Subject Product contained Androstenedione and exposed individuals to Androstenedione in the ways provided above.  The Notice (defined infra) informed Defendants of the presence of Androstenedione in th...
	38. Defendants’ actions in this regard were deliberate and not accidental.
	39. More than sixty days prior to naming Black Diamond in this lawsuit, Plaintiff issued a 60-Day Notice of Violation (the “Notice”) as required by and in compliance with Proposition 65.  Plaintiff provided the Notice to the various required public en...
	40. The appropriate public enforcement agencies provided with the Notice failed to commence and diligently prosecute a cause of action against Defendants.
	41. Individuals exposed to Androstenedione contained in the Subject Product through direct ingestion resulting from the reasonably foreseeable use of the Subject Product have suffered and continue to suffer irreparable harm.  There is no other plain, ...
	42. Defendants are liable for a maximum civil penalty of $2,500 per day for each violation of Proposition 65 pursuant to Health and Safety Code, section 252497(b).  Injunctive relief is also appropriate pursuant to Health and Safety Code, section 2524...
	PRAYER FOR RELIEF
	1. Civil penalties in the amount of $2,500 per day for each violation;
	2. A preliminary and permanent injunction against Defendants from manufacturing, importing, selling, and/or distributing the Subject Product in California without providing a clear and reasonable warning as required by Proposition 65 and related Regul...
	3. Reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of suit; and;
	4. Such other and further relief as may be just and proper.


	EXHIBITS.pdf
	Exhibit A and B
	Ex. A
	Exhibit A and B
	Ex. B




